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GEORGHIOS NICOLAOU ELLINAS,
Appellant-Plaintiff,

I0ANNIS HJISOLOMOU,
Respondent-Defendant.

(Cwil Appeal No. 5010).

Immovable Property—Transfer—Formal transfer m  cases where

certificate of registraton is based on the survey plan—Means
the transfer of the plot 10 which the registration relates and no-
thing more and nothing less— Land which is possessed by transferor
over and above the plot 1o which his certificate of registration
relates does not pass to the transferee—Immaterial whether such
transfer made before the date of the coming into operation of
the Immovable Property (Tenure, Registration and Valuation)
Law, Cap. 224 or after such date—Position different when regi-
stration of the transfer is not based on the survey plan.

These proceedings arose over a piece of land of an extent
of 3 donums, one evlek and 1800 sq. feet situated at Emba
village between plot 112, the property of the appellant-plaintiff
under Registration No. 6153 dated 20.1.1934 and plot 392,
the property of the respondent-defendant under Registration
No. 7724 dated 25.5.1954,

In 1967 the dispute between the litigants was brought by the
appellant before the Director of Lands and Sureys mm D.L.O.
Application No. 1862/67 as a boundary dispute under section
58 of the Immovable Property {Tenure, Registration and Valu-
ation)} Law, Cap. 224, who decided that the disputed piece of
land was covered by the registration of the appellant as being
part of plot 112. As the respondent failed to comply with the
decision of the Director the appellant brought an action against
him claiming, inter alia, a declaration that the respondent had
no right in any way over appellant’s land plot No. 112,
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In his statement of defence the respondent pleaded that the
disputed area was never in the possession of the appellant but
it was always in the possession of the respondent and. possibly.
by mistake, it was included in the registration of the appellant.
and that the appellant claimed its ownership for the first time
after the local inquiry was made in Application No. 1862/67
and so he was estopped by conduct andfor otherwisc from claim-
ing it.

The respondent further alleged that the disputed piece of land
belonged to him by virtue of undisputed and uninterrupted
possession for the full prescriptive period. and he adduced a
counterclaim for a declaration, inter alia, of the Courr rhat
the disputed area belonged to him by long lawful possession and/
or adverse possession and that he was entitled to registration
by the D.L.O.

On the 15th November 1924, following a local inquiry both
plots were transferred in the name of Ioulios D. Loizides. Plot
112 was transferred on the 25th November, 1933 as a resuli
of a forced sale and public auction in the name of Melissa Bank
and on the 20th January, 1934 it was transferred in the name
of the appellant.

Plot 392 was transferred in (936, as a result of a forced sale
and public auction in the name of Evlambia Omirou Demetria-
des who transferred it in the name of Andriani Touliou Loizides
in 1942, The latter sold it to the wife of the respondent in
August 1946; and in May 1954 the wife transferred it, by way
of gifi, 1o her husband-the respondent.

With regard to the possession of the disputed land the trial
Court found that *‘this has been proved to have begun on 25.11.
1933 when plot 112 was registered in the name of Melissa Bank
whilst its previous owner Ioulios D. Loizides retained the regi-
stration of plot 392 and continucd possessing the last mentioned
plot including the disputed area; and that this being so, by virtue
of the first proviso to section [0 of the Immovable Property
{Tenure, Registration and Valuation) Law, Cap. 224, the law
1o be applied for prescriptive right by possession is the Ottoman
Law as the period of possession began before the date of the
coming into operation of the said Law (Cap. 224) i.e. before
1.9.1946°". The trial Court further found that with each transfer
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and registration of plot 392 the disputed area was transferred
and registered also independently of its possession; that the
boundaries mentioned in each registiation of plot 392 covered
the disputed area and, therefore, the disputed area was also
transferred and registered; and that, in view of the fact that cach
such registration, save that in the name of the respondent, was
made before 1.9.1946 when Cap.224 came into operation, section
50 of that Law, which provides that “‘the area of land covered
by a registration, of title to immovabie property shail be the area
of the plot to which the registration can be related_......."",
had no application in the present aciion and Article 47 of the
Otioman Land Code applied by which the boundaries mentioned
fix the area of land of each registration irrespectively of whether
the extent was fixed or not.

In view of the above, the trial Court found that the period of
prescriptive right by possession of ten years from 25.11.1933
in favour of respondent of the disputed area has been proved
to be completed and also that in view of Article 47 of the
Ottoman Land Code even the ownership itself of the disputed
area has beer transfeired to the successive registered owners
up to and including the registration of plot 392 in the name
of Defendant’s wife, which took place on 9.8.1946, i.e. before
1.9.1946 the date of the coming into operation of Cap. 224,
when (respondent’s wife) transferred to respondent a complete
and perfect title of plot 392 together with the disputed area.

Upon appeal by plaintiff owner of plot 112:

Held, per Malachtos J., L. Loizou J. concurring and Hadji-
anastassiou J. dissenting, that formal transfer of immovable
property in cases where the certificate of registration is based
on the survey plan means the transfer through the D.L.O. of
the plot to which the registration relates and nothing more,
nothing less; that land which is possessed by thetransferor over
and above the plot to which his certificate of registraiion relates
does not pass to the transferee of that registration; that it is
immaterial whether such transfer was made before the I[st
September, 1946, the date of coming into force of the Immovable
Property (Tenure, Registration and Valuation) Law, Cap.
224, or after such date; and that the position is different when
the registration of the transferor is not based on the survey
plan: that, therefore, assuming that possession of the disputed
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portion of land by the predecessors in title of the wife of the res-
pondent, could be added up, so that she could complete the
ten years required period under the old Law, as found by the
trial Judge, since the transfer of the property in the name of the
respondent took place after the coming into force of the new
Law, her possession could not be added up to that of the res-
pondent, as the certificate of registration was based on the survey
plan and did not include the disputed portion; accordingly
the appeal must be allowed.

Appeal allowed.

Cases referred to:
Papageorghionw v. Komedromou (1963) 2 C.L.R 221;
HjiKyriacou and Another v Manuel, 10 C.LLR. 15;
HadjiSavva v. Maroniou, 7 C.LR. 89;
Ibrahim v. Souleiman, 19 C.L.R. 237 at p. 238;
Spunou v. Savva (1965 | C.L.R. 36;
Millington—-Ward v. Roubina (1970) | C.L.R, 88;
Terzian v. Michaelides, 18 C.L.R. 125.

Appeal.

Appeal by plaintiff against the judgment of the District Coutt
of Paphos (Pitsillides, D.J.) dated the 9th Septembcr, 197!
(Action No. 1076/68) whereby his claim for a declaration that
the defendant has no right over plaintiffs field under registration
No. 6153 was dismissed.

L. Papaphilippou, for the appcllant.

A. Triantafyllides, for the respondent.
Cur. adv. vult.

The following judgments were read.

HADJIANASTASSIOU J.: The main question in this appeal is
whether the land described in the statement of claim is the pro-
perty of the 1espondent, loannis Hjisolomou, having established
a prescriptive right for a period of over 10 years.

The facts of the case are these:

On September 30, 1968, the plaintiff, Georghtos Nicolaou
Ellinas, filed action 1076/68 claiming that the defendant, [oannis
Hjisolomou, has no right at all on the land in question covered
by plot 112 and was secking an order of the Court to prevent the
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latter from interfering with the said plot of land. Furthermore,
hz was claiming, in the alternative, an order to annul or amend
the registration andfor to prevent him fiom interfering with the
rights of the plaintiff.

On June 5, 1969, the defendant repudiated the averments of
the plaintiff and allegzd that the piece of land of about 3 donums
was never in the possession of the plaintiff and that, by mistake,
it was included in his title. In any cvent, the defendant pointed
out that the plaintiff has lost any rights on that piece of land
because he never had any possession of it; and that for the
first time he claimed the ownership of that land after a local
enquiry was carried out in application No. 863/67, by the Lands
Registry Office in Paphos.

Furthermore, it was the case for the defendant that the plaindiff
is estopped from raising such a claim, i.e. that he has trespassed
on that piece of land, and alleged that the said land belongs to
him because he remained in lawful possession and without pro-
test by anybody for a continuous adverse period of 30 years;
andfor in accordance with lawful, continuous uninterrupted and
undisputed possession by him of a period of over 10 years; and
that in accordance with the law, he was entitled to seek regi-
stration in his name.

On October 3, 1970, the District Lands Officer, Mr. Neophy-
tos Michael, told the Court that on January 28, 1970, he carried
out a local enquiry on the basis of the pleadings of this action
by order of the Court. Present were the parties; the wife of
defendant, Maria Evangelou, the rural comstable of Emba,
Georghios Demetriou, and the muhktar of Emba. The parties
had agreed that the disputed area of the land, 2xhibit 1’ was that
coloured red, of an extent of 3 donums, | evlek, and 1,800 sq.ft.

Turning to the purchase of the land in question, he said that
the plaintifi purchased plot 112 (coloured blue and red on the
sketch prepared) from Melissa Bank, which was the registered
owner under Registration No. 6104 dated November 25, 1933.
1t was transferred to the said bank by a curtain Ioulios D. Loizi-
dcs, who was the registered owner under Registration No.4945
dated November 15, 1924. ‘That piece of land was transferred
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carlicr to loulios Lotzides by a certain Demetrios Christodoulou
Loizides by inheritance and division. The said Demetrios
Loizides was the registered owner under Regivtration No.1228
dated November 1890. That registration desciibed the extent
as 4 donums. The Registration No. 4945 in the name of Toulios
Loizides was preceded by a local enquiry because of an appli-
catton No. 1610/1924.  After that local enquiry, the r:gistration
No, 4945 was issucd and describzd the property as plot 112, a
field of the extent of 22 donums and 3 ¢vleks.  That description
was the first one made. and all the subsequint registrations
followed that description.

It appears further that plot 392 was transferred to defendant
by Maria Evangeli Charalambous, the wife of the dcfendant,
who was the registe;cd owner undor registration No. 6373 dated
August 9, 1946, by a declaration of gift. It was transferred to
her by Andrianou fouliou Loizides, who was the registered
owner under the same registration No. 6373 dated August 20.
1942. ‘This picce of land was transferred to the said Andrianou
Touliou Loizidou by Evlambia Omirouw Dem:triadou who was
the registered owncr under the same registration No. 6373 dated
May 2i, 1936. This very same piece of land was transferred
earlier to the said Evlambia Omirou Demgtriades by [oulios
D. Loizides who was the rcgistered owner under Registration
4952 dated November 15, 1924. The last m:antioned registration
was made by application No. 1610/1924. The said registration
No. 4952 described the property as plot 392, Frakti, of the extent
of 5 donums and 2 evleks of arazi miric categoty. This des-
cription was the first madz and all subsequent registrations
followed that descdption.

Mr. Ioulios Loizides acquired plot 392 by imhelitance and
division from his father, Demetrios Christodoulos Loizides,
who was the registered owner under Registration No. 1235 and
described the property as a field of 2 donums, arazi miric cate-
gory. Maria Evangeli purchascd plot 392, Registration No.
6373 of an extent of 5 donums and 2 cvieks from Andrianon
Loizidou. The D.L.O. clerk furthsr added that plot 111 is Hali
Land with big rocks. But the remaining of the red area was
cultivated. The red line betwecn the red and blue arcas was
323 ft. long and comner A to comer B was 238 feet,

Régarding the disputed arca, the witness added that there is a
230
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decision of the Director. dated July 1, 1968 (sec exhibit 2). Th:
disputed arca. in fact, appears in the plan attached to the said
decision in red colour.

This witness was c1oss-cxamined at length and he conceded
that if the 1ed arca formed part of plot 112, loulios Loizides
would be boundary on three sides of plot 392, but he added that
he did not know if the clerk who fixed the boundarics in Re-
gistration No. 7724 meant the red line or not. He further went
on to add that he would record in any case, only once, loulios
D. Loizides, because this is their practice today. He admitted.
however, that up to a fow years ago, onc boundary was mentio-
ned as many times as the sides it occupied.

it is corrcet, he added, that since 1928, for the fixing of a plot
and its extent, they used the boundaries, but it is not corrcct, he
added, that the plot number is decisive for the fixing of a plot
since 1946. Plaintiff's plot is scale 1:5000 at the locality **Elics”™
and 1s described as a ficld. Defendant’s plot is on scale |:1250
in the village and is described as *‘fracti”.

Finally, he addcd that the decision of the Ditector was based
on the existence of tha survey plan of the boundary line which
separates the yellow area from the red avea.  He also conceded
that there have becn mistakes made by the D.L.O. in the survey
plans and m the registrations.

In re~cxamination, he said that he did not know if the defen-
dant was cver the owner of plot 393, but admitted that plots
392 and 393 were asszssed in the name of defendant at the general
survey. He also conoceded that there have been mistakzs as to
the existence of trees in a plot and many mistakes of the extent of
property bcfor: the gensral survey.

The case was adjourned to May 10, 1971 foi further hearing,
but on that dats no further evidence was called in support of th:
case of the plaintiff. The defendant called Mr. D. Loizides who
told the Court that his father had a lot of property at Emba
meluding the field at locality “Elics™, and a fiacti by the nam
“Ktiston”, which was adjacent to that field. The fracti was
sold by public auction and was purchased by Melissa Bank and
latar on by the plainuff.

The field at Elics was distinctly separate from the said fracti
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which was 2 - 6 feet higher than the ficld in question. They
were scparatcd by a dry wall and by a pathway leading from the
main Paphos-Emba 10ad through the boundaries of the said
field and fracti and was procceding towards the south. He
knew that pathway, the wituess added, and that he had seen it
on that date (10.5.71) and it had thc same route, being about
6 - 8 fecet wide. There was a diy wall between the pathway, and
the fracti and the latter had a dry wall all around it, and that wa:
the rcason why it was called *Ktiston”.

The fracti was purchased at a public auction aloag with the
other plots on its east side by Evlambia Demetriadou. The witn2ss
further explained that his mother later on purchased th: said
fracti with the other plots but she transferred them in the name
of his sister Andriani. He also added that Evlambia did not
purchase the field *“‘Elies™.

In 1942, a permit was issucd to sink a well in the name of his
sister and a well was sunk during that period in the fracti which
still exists. Thay used to sow the remaining part of the fracti
with cerzals up to the side which was near the fizld “Elies”.
Finally, the witness addz=d that on the side of the fracti which is
near the field Elics, there were, and still aie two carob trees and
a terebinth tree.  There were othzr trees there and he remembe-
1ed that they used to gather the carobs.

In cross-cxamination, he szid that the dry wall existed ever
since he remembered, but he did not know which was the dispu-
ted land which the parties claimed.

In rc-examination, he said that the plaintiff never interfered
with the fracti or with the well and that he never had any claim
on them.

There was further suppoiting evidcnce by Papagregorios
Nicolaou (a priest of Emba), 74 years of age, who told the Court
that he knew the partics, the field and the fracti in questions.
The field, he said, was on the level of the pathway and the fractt
was on a higher level. They both belonged to Loizides who had
the fracti even after the plaintiff acquired ownership of the field.
The higher level of the fracti is between 2 and 5 feet higher. The
pathway there existed for the last 60 - 65 years, and a lot of
people used it. He was using that pathway since he was a smali
boy.
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In 1944, the plaintifi brought an action against PapaGregorios
for that pathway, but finally they arrived at a settlement. They
placed poles to separate the pathway which was 4 ft. wide from
the ficld of the plaintiff, on the western side of the pathway. He
also added that they did not agree to place the poles on the side
of the fracti. On the fracti a well was sunk, whilst it was the
proparty of Mr. Toulios Loizides, and it was used for watering
animals; the water was raised to the surface with a hand mill.
The well was visible from a long distance. Finally, he said that
the defendant has been gathering the carobs.

In cross-cxamination, he said that the oktus separating the
field from the fracti was made of stones. He remembered the
public auction in which the plaintiff purchased the field, but he
did not remember if Evlambia owned the fracti. He also remem-
bered that it belonged to Ioulios Loizides and it was sold by
public auction in a compulsory sale and someone purchased it
along with other property.

In 1c-examination, he said that the plaintiff never possessed
the disputed area, and that plaintiff admitted in public and in
his presence, that he never possessed the disputed area, but
claimed it because the plan shows that it was his. He agreed
that the dcfendant cultivated the disputed area with tractors.

The wife of the defendant, Maria Evangeli, in supporting
further the case of her husband, said that she purchascd the said
fiacti from Andriana Loizides by a declaration of sale on August
9, 1946, and this plot was known as fracti or Ktiston. The fizld
of the plaintiff is separated from the fracti by a pathway which
passcs on the side of the plaintiff’s ficld. Over that pathway
there is an oktus. The plaintiff used to sow and plant his field,
but he never tried to use the fracti or to claim owncrship over it.
Mr. Loizides used the water of the well for watzring animals and
for irrigating some vegetables in the fracti. In explaining the
reason why the certificates of registration were not produced, she
said that the D.L.O. lost her certificates of registration which
she gave with the declaration of gift to her husband.

In cross-examination, she said that the certificate of regi-
stration was read over to her beforc she purchsed the fracti from
Andriana Loizidou. She was positive that the contents of the
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registration were tead to her and that the area was 5 donums and
2 gvleks.

In re-examination, sh: said that the boundaries of the fieid
were shown to her and that the aigaki ran from east to west, and
had been filled by them with a buildozer.

The defendant told the Court that the fracti which was pur-
chased by his wife was higher than the ficld of the plamtiff and
that the plaintiff never interfered with any part of their property.

In cross-examination he said that they rais:d water every day
fiom the well and they used it for giving water to their animals
and for irrigation purposcs. They lowered the depth of the
well about 15 years ago.

The learned trial Judge, having reviewed the evidence before
him, acccpted the cvidence for the defence. and said:-

“In view of th: location of thy pathway which has been
proved by the D.L.O. clerk and by defendant and all his
witnesses 1o be within the blue area of exhubit 1, alongside
the oktus separating the blue area from the yollow and red
(disputed arcas), no doubt can arise that by the inclusion in
the above condition of the words *Ar the eastern end of his
(plaintiff’s) ficld along the boundary of the adjoining ficld
of loulios Loizides, the plaintiff admitted that the property
beyond the eastern side of that pathway {including the
disputed red area in exhibit 1) did not belong to him but
that it belonged to loulios Loizides, that pathway being the
castern landmark of his property’ ™.

Then the leamed Judge - having no doubt, went on to add
that (a) when the plaintiff purchased plot 112, he and the vendor
knew that he purchased only the blue atea and that the red dis-
puted area was not included; that neither ths plaintiff nor his
predecessor-in-title of plot 112 (Melissa Bank) ever possessed
the disputed arsa or even showed any act of ownership thereon,
and that he first started asserting his claim upon it by his appli-
cation No. A1862/1967 to the D.L.O. of Paphos, under s.58 of
Cap. 224; afier he discovered that according to the survey plan
the red area was inctuded in plot 112; (b) when the defendant’s
wife purchased plot 392, she and the vendor knew that the dis-
puted area was included in the property purchased, and that the
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disputed area was always in the exclusive possession of the de-
fendant. of his wife and of their predeccssors-in-title to plot 392;
(v) the survey pian was wrongly drafted to include the disputed
arca in plot 112 whereas it always formed part of plot 392 and
that this error resulted from the drawing of the separation line
between Emba village and locality Elies; 2nd (d) that the de-
cision of the Director was based on the cxistence of the survey
plan of the said scparation line which was wrongly drafted.

Then the learmed Judge, having dealt with the legal points
regarding possession reached this conclusion:

“[ find that the period of prescriptive right of possession
of 10 years from 25.11.33 in favour of defendant of the dis-
puted area has becn proved to be completed and also that
in view of Article 47 of the Ottoman Land Code, even the
ownership of the disputed area has been transferred to the
successive registered owners up to and including the re-
gistration of plot 392 in the name of defendant’s wife which
took place on 9th August 1946 i.e. before st September
1946 the date of the coming into operation of Cap. 224,
who, (defendant’s wife) transferred to defendant the coni-
plete and porfect title of plot 392 together with the disputed
area.”

With that in mind, the leained trial Judge dismisscd the action
of the plaintiff and gave judgment in favour of the defendant on
his counterclaim as per paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) with costs in
favour of the defendant.

On appeal, counsel mads four propositions in support of his
contention that the leamed tvial Judge was wrong in law in
reaching the said decision.

On the contrary, counsel for the respondents, in a strong and
full argument, contended that the decision of the trial Court was
rightly taken, both factuaily and legally.

I have alicady stated that the learned trial Judge had before
him evidence as to the physical state of the land and also evidence
as to posscssion and documentary ovidence. On the contrary,
there was a complete lack of evidence on behalf of the appellant.
Therc is no doubt that the physical state of the land is an import-
ant ong, if one considers whether there was a mistake in law, and
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this finds support in Jbrahim v. Souleyman, 19 C.L.R. 237. Hali-
nan, C.J., speaking about the question whether there was a
mistake, said at p. 238:-

“If there has been such a mistake then we consider that it
must be presumed that Djaffer Halil, the transferor to the
respondent, was, before the mistake was made, the re-
gistered owner of the land claimed by the respondent, and
that Djaffer Halil in 1946 legally transferred all his rights in
the land of which he was owner to the respondznt. De-
fendant-appellant acquired her interest in plot 29/1 by gift;
she is not a bona fide purchaser for value, If the appcliant’s
predecessor in title by error obtained registration for part of
Djaffer Halil’s title, the register must be rectified.
(Miltat v. Loiza, 6 C.L.R., 13).

In our view, the true issuc in this casc ts whether delinea-
tion of plot 30 on the survey plan is coirect or not, having
regard to the description of the boundaries in the certifi-
cates of title No. 12,342, the evidence of trees in the ¢erti-
ficates of title of both appellant and respondent, the changes
in the areas of plots 29 and 30 over the material period, and
lastly the cvidence of actual possession of the land in dispute
by cither party or thuir piedecessors in title,

If the respondent succceds in this issue then it is not
necessary to consider whether he has obtained a prescripti-
ve right to the land in dispute. Under the law rolating to
lands prior to 1946 it is very doubtful if a person who has
obtained by prescription alone a right to be registered, can
transfer his right verbally to anothor unless he perfects his
title by registration so as to give the transferee a right of
action.”

I would reiterate that although there was ample evidence on
behalf of the defendant and his predecessors—in-title, the plaintiff
never gave evidence, and no evidence was adduced regarding
his possession. This is indeed one of the few cases, as far as
1 can remember, where counsel for the plaintiff did not ev¢n
challenge the ciedibility of the witnesses.

Turning now to the law which govemns this case, | think
one can derive some assistance or guidance from the case of
Spanou v. Savva, (1965) 1 C.L.R. 36, with regard to transfers
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which wsre completed on September 1, 1946. This was an
appeal against the judgment of the District Court of Nicosia,
whereby it was declared, inter alia, that a strip of land adjoining
defendant’s property belonged to plaintiff by prescription.  This
appeal was concerned with transfers effected prior to the cnact-
ment of Cap. 224, which th: trial Court determined upon the
law in foree at the time of the transfer, i.e. the law as it stood
before Cap. 224 came into force in September, 1946. Vassi-
liades, J.. as hec then was, in 2 shoit judgment, in dismissing
the appeal, said at pp. 37-38:-

“The appeal was based mainly on the authority of a land
case decided in May, 1963, Redothea PapaGeorghiou v.
Antonis Savva Komodromou, (1963) 2 C.L.R. 221, specifi-
cally referrcd to in the grounds of appeal.

As pointed out in the course of the argument this
morning, the subject-matter in that case were transfers
of registration effected after the enactment of the Immovable
Property (Tenure, Registration and Valuation) Law, 1946,
now Cap. 224; and the casc was decided on certain provi-
stons of that statute. Here we are concerned with transfers
cfiected prior to the enactment of Cap. 224, which the trial
Court determined upon the law in forcs at the time of the
tramsfer, i.c. the law as it stood before Cap. 224 came into
force in S:ptember, 1946.

We are unanimously of opinion that the leamed trial
Judge was 1ight in dcciding this case on what he described
in his judgment as the ‘old law’ which, we think, he correctly
applied. Having reached this conclusion, we can disposc
of this appeal without discussing the effect of the judgments
in Georghiou v. Komodromou (supra) which, as already
stated, turned mainly on the provisions of the present law,
the Immovable Property (Tunure, Registration and
Valuation) Law, 1946”.

Having quoted this casc, and in vicw of the various
registrations, it appears that the law governing the prescnt case
is Articlc 46 of the Ottoman Land Code which provides that
a man buys what he sces physically, and this was exactly what

"had happened in this case when the wife of the defendant

purchased the field which was pointed out to her and its
boundaries.
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After 1946, the position has changed. and one can contrast
section 50 of Cap. 224. with regard to the mode of determining
the area of registered land. This section says that:

“The arca of land covered by a rogistration of title
to immovable property shall be the arca of the plot to
which the registration can be related or any Government
survey plan or any other plan made to scale by the Director:
Provided that where the iegistration cannot be relatud to
any such plan, such arca shall be the area of the land to
which the holder of the titls may be entitied by adverse
posscssion, purchase or inheritance”.

With this in mind, it appear: that when the defundant’s wife
bought the land in qucstion in August, 1946, the period of 10
years’ prescription had already been completed. It is cqually
truc to say that the property transforred by her into the name
of her husband in 1954, included all the land or arca of the land
which was possessed by her sincc 1946.

It is equally true to say that Cap. 224 which came into foice
on September |, 1946, has no retrospective offect, and consc-
quently, the provisions of the law in force immediately prior
to the enactment of Cap. 224, govern the rights of the partics
in the present case.  (Sce Millington-Ward v. Roubina, (1970)
1 C.L.R. 38).

This principle finds further suppoit in Terzian v. Michaelides,
18 C.L.R. 125, The respondent’s father became owner in 1925
by purchase of a house and a yard adjoining his wife’s hous:,
and in the same ycar, he gave as a gift to his wife, the then owner
of the respondent’s house, a small space from his plot, 6 ft. x
6 ft. on which a W.C. was constructed for the wife’s house.
On the 31st July, 1939, the wifc transforred her house to their
daughter, the respondent, and by the declaiation of sale, admit-
tedly in the handwriting of the father who was a Land Registry
Official, the mother asked for the tranfer to the rispondent of
this W.C. along with othzr additions to the house. In effect,
the title deed issucd to respondunt in pursuance of this
declaration, and after a local enquiry. specifically mentioned
the W.C. in question. [t was necessary to exclude this space
from the father’s registiation, for which the father’s consent
would be required, bt madveriently this was not done. Om
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the evidence, it was clear that the father acquicsced in the in-
clusion of the space in the respondent’s title deed. In 1943,
the father transferred his own house. as it was originally
registered in his name, to another daugher, who sold and trans-
ferred it im the following year to the appellant, who, in February.
1945, contended that hz was the owner of the space in question.
The 1espondent then brought an action claiming ownership
by registration or prascriptive advzrse posscssior, and the Court
had to determine which of the two registrations should prevail
in respect of the space in dispute.

The Court of Appeal held (1) that the appellant’s predeccscor—
in—title, nam:ly respondert’s father, remained inadvertently
formally registeied for the spuac: in dispute, and appellant, who
inspected the premises before his purchase cannot be considerad
4 bona fide purchaser without notice. The transfer to
respond:nt was cifective to include this space, but cven if doubts
were 1o persist as to this result. the respondent’s titlc was per-
fected by the lapse of the prescriptive period of 15 years.

Griflith Williams, J., in dismissing the appeal, aftirmed the
judgment of the District Court, and said at p. 128

“On this head of claim the evidence, in our opinion, iy
conclusive in favour of respondent both as to exclusive
possession and 28 to adverse possession,  'We do not over-
look the fact that the husband, the donor, was residing
with his wife in hzr house until his transfor to Kyrenia
in 1936. This circumstance does not change the adverss
character of the wife’s possession during her ownzrship
of the housc. The wifc as owner was im possession of the
whole house including this W.C. space which was, as we
said, permancntly attached to her house as best thoy could
make it, and the owner’s intention on her part could not
but extend ovar this space. The husband’s intent on the
other hand to part with the ownership of this space in
favour of the wife is clear from the fact of his having made
a gift of it to his wife,

This exclusive and adveisc possession of the wife was
continued down to and beyond the completion of the -
prescriptive period by her daughter, the rxspondent. So
that the respondent’s claim based on piescriptive possession
s unanswerable.
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The result is that in our opinion the appellant’s
predscessor in title, namely rcspondent’s father, remained
inadvertently formally 1egistered for this space, and appel-
lant cammot be considered a bona fide purchaser without
notice. The transfer to respondent in the circumstances
enumerat:d was effective to include this space, but cven
if doubts were to persist as to this result, the responent’s
title was perfected by the lapse of the appropriate prescri-
ptive period of 15 years™

Finally. in Rodothea PapaGeorghiou v. Antonis Savva Chara-

lambous Komodromon, (1963) 2 C.L.R., 221 the facts were these ~

“The app:llant {defendant) is the owner of a plot of land
No. 631 under title deed under registration No. 6555
dated the 28th March. 1955, The respondent (plaintiff)
is the owner of the adjoining plot No. 632 under
Registration No. 6231 dated the 2ist September, 1949.
A dispute has arisen betwecn the parties as to the ownoer-
ship of a strip of land 2,500 sq. ft. in extent which was found
to be included in the plot No. 632 registered as aforesaid
in the 1espondent’s name. The previous registiations of
the lattcr’s title deed No. 623) were Nos. 2343 and 2344
in the name of the father of the respondent.  After a local
inquiry held some time in 1949, the said two registrations
were identified to the survey plan and the new title deed
No. 6231 was issued to the father who shortly afterwards
transferred the land to his son, the respondont,

The registrations of the appellant’s title deed No. 6555
wore Nos. 2308 and 2309 in the name of her mother for
which after local inquiry the new title deed No. 6555 was
issued to the mother, who transferred the land to her
daughter the appellant, some time in 1955, The disputed
portion of land was being cultivated by the mother at least
as fur back as from 1915 till 1938 or 1939 when she
informally gave the whole field (including the disputed
area) to her daughter (appellant) as dowry who as from that
date was cultivating the whole field until the present day.
The respondent instituted his action against the appellant
claiming on foot of his aforesaid title deed under registration
No. 6231 an injunction restraining thc appellant from
mterfering with the portion of land in dispute. The appel-
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lant (defindant) disputed the claim and  counter-claimed
for an order of the Coust dirccting the rzgistration in her
name of the land in dispute on account of: ({a) undisputed
adverse possession for tifty years and (b} mistake wherchy
the said portion of lund has been included in the tithe deed
of the plaintiff (respondent) .

The trial Court found that the disputed arca 15 included
in the plaintiff’s (respondent’s) title deed under reg. No-
6231, dated the -2Ist September, 1949. To the question
whether the period of possession by the mother of the appel-
lant could be added to that of the daughter—appellant. the
trial Court answered in the -negative inasmuch as the
disputed portion possessed by the mother from (915 to
1938 or 1939 could not be trunsfurred informally to the
daughter and, therefore, the latter, having not completed
from 1938 or 1939 to the Ist September, 1946 (on which
date Cap. 224 (supra) came into force) a full period of ten
years’ possession of her own, was only entitled to the land
actually transferred to her by her mother i 1955 under
registration No. 6555 (supra) which title deed admittedly
does not include the disputed arca of land. Conscquently.
the_trial Court granted to the appellant (plaintifi) the
injunction claimed for. On appeal by the defendant,
the High Court (Vassiliades, J. dissenting), upholding the
judgment of the trial Court

Held, (Vassiliades, J. dissenting),

() in our view two are the points of law which fall for
dccision;

(1) Whether the appellant’s mother’s period of possession
or part thercof over the disputed portion of land might
be added to the period actually possessed by the appellant
so that, prior to the Ist September, 1946, the date of the
coming inte force of the Immovable Property (Tenure,
Registration and Valuation) Law, 1946, she would complete
the required 10 yzars’ period to enable her to obtain pres-
criptive right over the disputed land.

(2) Whether the plamtifi-respondent was entitied to the
injunction restraiming the defundant fiom interfering with
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the disputed land notwithstanding that the former was
never in possession of the said fand and the inclusion of
the disputed portion of land in his title deed might as wll
he dus to a mistake™.

Zekia, ). i delivering the judgment of the majority, said at
p. 233:-

"“As to the first point, possessory rights, prior 10 the enact-
ment of the Immovable Property (Tenure, Registration
and Valuation) Law. Cap. 224, weic governed by Article
20 {in the case of lands of Arazi Muwie category) of the
Ottoman Land Code and by the Immovable Property Limi-
tation Law. 1886 (Law 4 of 1886)".

Then, having quoted Article 20, and sections 2 and 3 of Law
4 of 1886, and having ohserved that the main object of Law
4 of 1886 was in his view, to amend the sccond part of Article 20
of the Ottoman Land Cods so that a person who adversely
possessus a particular piece of land would not be debarred of
the right of acquiring ownership of the Jand cven if he
acknowledges that he arbitrarily possessed such land, he said
that “it is clear from the old and ncw law relating to the trans-
fer of immovable property that registration in one way or the
other was nccessary for the validity of the transfer™.

“In this case the mother, the predecessor-in-title of the
appzllant was not, as far as the evidence goes, the registered
owner in respect of the disputed portion of tand and when she
made a gift of the land possessed by her including the disputed
portion as dowry to her daughter, the appellant, in 1938 or
1939, that gift not having been made in accordance with the Law,
could not bc considered to be a transfer in the legal sense of
the word. Cn the other hand, whon she nansferred the land
registered in her name, which registration did not include the
disputed portion. in 1955 that transfer could not comprise the
disputed portion on account of section 50 of the immovable
Property (Tenure, Registration and Valuation) Law, which
reads as follows:— . e e e

*“The periods of possession of an area of land by successor
and predecessor—in-title could be added wp n cases of
devolution by inheritance and in transfers where the title
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deed is not related to a survey plan, excluding the area in
question, and in such a case th: proviso to section 50 will
operate and the period of adverse possession by transferor
and transferee will then be added up. Prior to 1946,

5 when Articl: 47 of the Ottoman Land Code was in force
in a transfer where the boundaries were indicated the cxtent
of the area mcntioned was not material but what mattered
was the area included within the boundaries named:
Article 47 reads:.......

10 Beofore the General Survwcy and the system of registia’ion
with reference to a survey plan was imtroduced in this
countiry, transfers by kotchans or tapou seneds were in
vogue. These kotchans and seneds as a rule did not relate
to any survey plan and therefore where a dispute between

15 two neighbouring land-owners in respect of a portion of
land falling between their properties arose the only way
of deciding the dispute was to find out which of the nzigh-
bouring land-owners had undisputed possession over the
disputed portion and m such cases possession by transferor

20 and by transferec of the disputed portion could be computed
together.  The first proviso to section 10 of the Immovable
Property (Tenure, Recgistration and Valuation) Law has
been mterpreted by this Cowrt in a number of cases and
needs no further consideration. The period of prescription.

25 if not complcted by ist Scptember, 1946, cannot be
completed thereafter against a registered owner and in
this case the possession started by the appellant in 1938
or 1939 being incomplete by Ist September 1946 it cannot
be comploted after that date against a registered owner.

30 the father of the respondent and later the 1espondent in
this case. by continuing to possess the land in dispute.

[ am of thc opinion, therefore, that whatever possessory
rights were vested in the mother of the appzllant in respect
of disputed land those rights did not pass to the daughter

35 zither by virtue of the agreement of dowry in 1938 or 1939
or on the strength of the transfer in 1955 which transfer
did not include the disputed land™.

Turning now to the sccond point, viz. whether the plaintift
respondent was cntitled to the imjunction sought, Zekia. J.
40 in dismissing the appeal, had this to say at pp. 238-239:-
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. .1 think the case of HjiGeorghi HjiKyriacou and another

v. Kvpriano - Manuel (1910), 10 CL.R. p. 15, is to the point.
There the defendant by a cross-action claimed a right to
registration on the ground of piescription but failed to
prove his claim.  On the other hand, it had been proved
that the plainiff's title deed was obtained by a false certi-
ficate and on this fact the district Court dismissed the
plaintifi’s claim. The Supreme Court. however, allowed
the appeal with costs.

Tvser. GJ...at p. 16 siates:

“The Courts are mot Courts of Appeal from the Land
Registry. Office.  All that the Court does is this, that where
by. subsistence of:any registration injury is done to some
one-whlois entitied 10" the land, and where the person
agrieved conies into” Court to” assert his rights as against
the person' registered, the Court hears his-claim and makes
a declaration of his rights, and the Land Registry Office
acts upon the Court’s declaration.

The Court has no right to take the quochan into its own
hands: and without the quochan’s being challenged by any
person entitled to the property, to decline to enforee it..........

Perhaps a brief veference might also be made to the
casc of Tsikinou HadjiSavva against Kyriakou Georghiou
Maroulou (1907) 7 CL.R., p. 89, whare it was held that
in a dispute as to the boundaries between two adjoining
propertics, both claiming under Kotchans, each of which
is consistent with the claim of the person holding under it,
and where one of the partics is in posscssion of the land
in dispute, the onus lics upon the party secking to disturb
that possession to cstablish his claim to the satisfaction
of the Court. Obviously this case is distinguishable from
the present one because the title deeds of both partics are
not ¢qually consistent with claim and counter—claim. Had
the transfer in the names of the litigants been made without
tefercnce to plots in a survey plan no doubt this case would
have a strong bearing in the present appeal.

On the former authority qucted I am of the opinion that
cven if the registration in the name of the respondent in
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this casc included the disputed portion by mistake he was
entitled to have judgment i his favour™.

I have very carcfully consideied the material and substantial
facts of this case, and in my vicw, the present case is distinguish-
able from the facts of that of Rodethea’s case. In any
event, the ratio decidendi lays down that the transfars should
be made formally, and not informally as was the case in Redotheu
v. Komodromou (supra). On the contrary, in the presant case,
the Court came to the conclusion that the said transfers weie
made formally, and | would support the judgment of the trial
Judge on all three issues raised and argued before him.

For the reasons | have given at length, and “in the light of
the various decisions [ have quoted, [ think | would express my
indebtedness to both counsel—once they have argued their
case very ably and weic indeed vory helpful to this Court in
reaching its decision.

Appeal .is therzfore. dismissed.

Mavacurtos J.: This is an appcal by the plaintiff in Action
No. 1076/68 of the'District Court of Paphos against the judg-
ment of a District Judge of that Court where his claim - was
dismissed and judgment was given in favour of the defendant
on his counterclaim.

The dispute arose over a picce of land of an extent -of
3 donums, one evizk and 1800 sq. feet situated at Emba village
betwecn plot 112, the property of the appellant-plaintiff under
Registration No. 6153 dated 20.1.1934 and plot 392, the property
of the respondent-defendant under Registration ‘No. 7724
dated 25.5.1954.

In 1967 the dispute between the litigants was brought by the
appellant before the Director of Lands and Surveys in D,L.O.
Application No. 1862/67 as a boundary dispute under section
58 of the Immovable Property (Tenure, Registration and Valu-
ation) Law, Cap. 224, who decided that the disputed piece of
land was covered by the registration of the appellant as being
part of plot 112 and the rclevant decision dated 1.7.1968 .was
communicated to the parties.

As a result of non compliance with the said decision of the
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Dircctor by the respondent, the appellant on 30.9.1968 instituted
the present proceedings claiming:

{a} a declaration of th: Court that the defendant has no
right in any way over pluintiff's field, plot 112 §/P
45/51. Registration No. 6153;

(b} av imjunction ordzring the defindant to cease inter-
fering in any way with the plaintiff’s said field;

{c} an otd.r for the canccllation or alteration of any
registration or impediment affecting plaintiff’s right:
and

(d) £60.~ damages andfor othuiwise.

In the statement of his defence the defendant pleaded that
the disputed arcy was never in the poscession of the plaintiff
but it was always in the possession of the defendant and,
possibly, by mistake. it was included in the registration of the
plaintiff. and that the plaintiff claimed its ownership for the first
time after the local inquiry was made in Application No. 1862/67
and so he is estopped by conduct and/or otherwise from claiming
it.

The defondant further alleged that the disputed piece of land
belongs to him by virtue of undisputed and uninterruptzd posses-
sion for the full prescriptive period, and he adduced the
following counterclaim:

(a) a declaration of the Court that the disputed area
belongs to him by long lawful possession and/or adverse
possession and that he is entitled to registration by the
D.L.O.;

{b) an order for the registration of the disputed arca in
defendant’s mame setting aside and cancelling any
other existing registration and/or amending it to the
extent that the rights of the defendant are affected;
and

{c) a declaration of the Court that the plaintiff has no
right on the disputed area and/or that he lost his rights.
if any.

At the trial before the District Court the plaintiff relied
exclusively on the strength of his certificate of registration and
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in suppoit of his case called as a witness only the D.L.O. Clerk
who carried out a local inquiry on 28.1.1970 by Order of the
Court on the basis of the pleadings.

On the other hand, the d:fendant in support of his case
besides giving evidence himszelf, called thres more witnesses
namely, his wife, Demetrakis 1. Loizides, th: son of foulio:
D. Loizides late of Emba, and Papagiegorios Nicolacu. the
priest of Emba.

On the evidence adduczd the trial Judge found that both
th: property of the plamtiff and the defendant as well as the
disputed picce of land, originally belonged to Dzmetrios Chr
Loizides of Emba under Registration Nos. 1228 of an exten
of 4 donums, and 1235 of an extent of two donums, both datec
November, 1890,

On the 15th November, 1924, afier a local imquiry bot
registrations, which weore of Arazi Mivie category, won
transfurred n the name of loulios D. Loizides, the son o
Demuctrios Chr, Loizides. Registration No. 1228 was identilie
as plot 112 compiicing 22 donums and three vvleks in extea
of S/P 5i/45 and was transferred in the name of loulio:
D. Loizdes under Registration No. 4945, Registration No
£235 was identificd as Plot 392 comprising five donums and tw«
evieks in extent and was transfzrred in the name of foulios D
Loizides under Registration No. 4952,

It must be noted here that Plot 112 including the disputec
portion is to scale 1/5000 whercas Plot 392 it to scale /1251
and that the Gencral Survey for the Paphos arza was complsted
on 27.5.1924.

Registration 4945 was transferred as a result of a forced sals
and public auction in the name of Melissa Bank under Registra
tion No. 6104 dated 25th November, 1933, and later was
transferred in the name of the plaintiff under Registration No.
61353 dated 20th January, 1934 and is registered in his name cver
since.

Registration 4152 was transferrcd also as a result of a forced
sale and public auction in the name of Evlambia Omirou De
metriades undeir Registration No. 6373 dated 21st May, 1936.
It was later transferred in the name of Andrianou Iouliou Loi-
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zides under the sume registration No. 6373 dated 2(Gth August,
1942 and was later transferred in the nam: of Maria Evangelou
Charalambous, the wife of the defendant, under the same regi-
stration No. 6373, dated 9th August, 1946. Finally, it was
transferred by way of gift in the name of the defendant under
Registration No. 7724 dated 25th May, 1954

On the qucstion of possession of the disputed piecs of land
the trial Judge made the following findings as they appear at
page 37 of the record:

“From all the evidince adduced i this action, including
that of the D.L.O. clerk (P.W.1). I have no doubt that:-

(2} When Plaintift purchused plot 112 he and the vendor
knew that he purchased only the blue area and that
the ved disputad area was not included; that neither
the Plaintifl nor his predecessor mn title of plot 112
(Mclissa Bank)} ¢ver postessed the disputed area or
cven showed any act of ownership thercon and that
h: fivst started asserting hiz ¢laim upen it by his apphi-
cation No. A1862/1967 to the D.L.O. Paphos under
scction 58 of Cap. 224 after he discovared that accor-
ding to the Survey plan the red area was included in
plot 112,

(b) When Dofendant’s wife purchased plot 392 she and
the vindor knew that the disputed area was included
in the property purchased and that the disputed area
was always in the exclusive possession of the Defendant,
of his wife and of their predecessors in title to plot
392.

(c) The Swivoy plan was wrongly drafted to include the
disputed area in plot 112 whereas it always formed
part of plot 392 and that this crror resulted from the
drawing of the separation line between Emba village
and locality ‘Elics’.

(d) The decision of the Director was based on the existence
on the survey plan of the said separation line which
was wrongly drafted.

The first legal matter which falls for considcration in the
present action is whether Defendant acquired ownership of
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the disputed arca by long period of possession; but before
this point is discussed, mention should be made that Civil
Appeal No. 402 (Akil Hussein Arnaout v." Emine’ Hussein
Zinouri) (1953) C.L.R. Vol. XIX. pages 249-258:at p.-255.
lcaves no - doubt - that registration can . be. def2ated by
. evidence of possession by another™.

Pausing here for & moment | must say that the findings of

the trial Judge under (1) and (b) above are correet, with; this

modiiication as regards (b}: that when defendant’s wife, pur-
chased plot 392 shes and the vendor weie under the impression
that the disputed arca was included in the property purchased.

As regards his findings under (c) and (d), that the survey
plan was wiongly diafted to include the ‘disputed arca in plot
112, arc arbitrary and, conscquently,, not correct. Bosides
the fact that this issue is not raised in the pleadings of
the defendant. it is also not supported by the evidence adduced.

Having gone through the record of proceedings.the only
cvidence 1 could trace on this point was the. evidence of . the
D,L.0. clerk who m answer to a general question,; in, cross-
cxamination, stated that ““there have beon mistakes, made by
the D.L.O. in the Survey plans and in the registration”,

"It appears that the trial Judgs took imlo, account this picce

- of evidence and applied it to th2 case in hand on.the assumption

that mistakes must have been made i the present case, ' The

- trial Judge then proceedsd further and-concluded his judgment

at page 38 of the record as follows:

“With regard to the legal point in hand; i 2:'that of posses-
sion of the disputed area, this has been proved to, have
“begun on 25.11.1933-when plot 112 was registered in the
name of Meclissa Bank under vegisiration No. 6104, whilst
its previous owner loulios D. Loizides retained the regi-
stration of plot 392 and continued posscssing:'the' last
mentioned plot imcluding: the “disputed- arca. "' Thist being
0, by virtue of th first proviso to scction 10 of the Immo-
- vablz Property (Tenure Registration and: Valuation) Law,
Cap. 224, the law to be applicd for, prescriptive right by
possession is the Ottoman Law as the period of posession
began beforz the date,of the coming inlo operation of the
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satd Law (Cap. 224), i.c. beforc 1.9.46. This has becn de-
cided in a number of appeal cascs, two of which are:  Civil
Appeal No. 4106 (Enver Mehmer Chakarte v. Hussein
czet Liono) (1954), 20 C.L.R. part I, page 113, and Civil
Appeal No. 4787 (Aspasia Millington-Ward v. Chloi Rou-
bina) (1970) 3 J.S.C. page 277. As to the category of the
disputed arca 1 have no doubt that this fulls within the arazi
miric category, as both plots 112 and 392 aie arazi miric;
the pzrod of prscription for arazi mirie is ten yeass as pro-
vided by Article 20 of the Ottoman Land Code. Plot 392,
however, changed tegistered owners and those successive
owners came mto possession of the disputed arca as weil;
the said successive registered owners were: Evlambia Omirou
Demetriades (registration No. 6373 dated 21.5.36), Andria-
nou louliou Loizides (regitration No. 6373 dated 20.8.42),
Defendant’s wife (registration No. 6373 dated 9.8.46) and
lastly Defendant (registration No. 7724 dated 25.5.54).

The question which now remains is: if the periods of
possession of the said successive owners can be added to
make up the ten years required for ownecship by possession.
Civil Appcal No. 4393 (Rodothea Papa Georghiou v.
Antonis Savva Charalambous Komodromou (1963) C.L.R.
part 2, pages 221-265, is clear on this point and it decided
that possessory rights vested in a person cannot pass to his
successor in possession in case of an informal transfer
because a transfer of ownership is not made in accordance
with the Law, ie. without transferring the land with the
D.L.G., and thercforc void. Howcver, in the present
action transfa1 of plot 392 was made lcgally in the names of
the successive registered owners and therefore the period of
possession of each such registered owner was transferable
and added to the period of possession of his succzssor in
title. The questioan left is whethsr with each transfer and
registration of plot 392 the disputed area was transferred
and registered also independently of its possession.  From
the evidence of th: D.L.O. clerk {(P.W.1) no doubt is left
that the boundaiies mentioned in each regstration of plot
392 covered the disputed area and therefore the disputed
area was also transferred and registered, and, in view of the
fact that each such registration, save that in the name of the
Defendant, was made before 1.9.46 when Cap. 224 came into
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operation, scction 50 of that Law, which provides that ‘the
arca of land covered by a registration of title to immovable
propeity shall be the area of the plot to which the registra-
tion can be relatzd.... °, has no application in the present
action and Article 47 of the Ottoman Land Code applics by
which the boundaries mentioned fix the area of land of each
registration irrcspectively of whether the extent is fixed or
not.

in view of the above. | find that the period of prescriptive
right by posscssion of ten years from 25.11.33 in favour of
Defendant of the disputed area has been proved to be com-
plzted and aiso that in view of Article 47 of the Ottoman
Land Code cven the ownership its2Hf of the disputad area
has been traasferred to the successive registered owners up
to and including the registration of plot 392 in the name of
Dofendant’s wife. which ook place on 9.8.46, i.c. before
1.9.46 the date of the coming into operation of Cap. 224,
who (dcfendant’s wife) transferred to defendant a complete
and perfuct title of plot 392 together with the disputed area™.

I must say at the outset that the trial Judge was unfortunately
mistaken in taking the view as to what s meant formal and
imformal transfer in the case of Rodothea Papageorghiou v.
Antonis Savva Charalambous Komodromou (1963) 2 C.L.R. 221
and distinguished it from the case in hand. The present case, in
my view, is on all fours with that case. The facts of that case
and the reasoned decision appear in the majority judgment of
Zekia J., as he then was, from page 232 to 239 of the report and
are worth quoting them verbatim.

“The plaintifi’s property is registered under reg. No.6231
dated 2!st September, 1949, and is of one donum and two
evieks in extent (plot 632). Dcfendant’s plot has registra-
tion No. 6555 (plot 631} dated 28th March, 1935, and is of
two evlzks and 900 sq. feet in cxtent. Both lands are at
Polemi village. The title deeds of the litigants are based on
a survey plan bearing No.45/13.

The previous rugistration Nos. of the utle deed of the
plaintiff were 2343 and 2344, After a locai inquiry, held
in 1949, the said registrations were identified to the survey
plan and a now title deed, bearing No.6231. was issued.
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The father of the plaintiff transferred the land, covered by
the new title deed, to his son, the plaintiff, in 1949,

The previous registeations of the title deed of the appel-

- lart were 2308 and 2309 for which, after a local inquiry, a

new title deed, bearing No.6555, was issued in the name of

her mother who transferred it in the name of her daughter,
the defcndant, soms time in 1955,

The Court found that the disputed portion of land was
cultivated by the defendant’s mother, at least as far back as
1915 till 1938 or 1939, when the defendant’s mother gave the
field 10 the defendant as dowry and from that date the dis-

- puted portion of the land was cultivated by the defendant
herself until the prisent day.

There was an earth bank (ohto), before it was inteifered with
by the plaintiff, bctween the disputed portion and the uadispu-
ted portion of the land covered by the plot of the plaintiff which
bank was one foot wide ard half a foot high and, according to the
Land Registry Officer, whose cvidence the Court accepted, the
disputed portion is on a lower level, approximatcly 8" lower
than the surface of the remaining portion of the land of the
plaintiff. The disputed land was formurly covered by mulbery
trees.

The trial Court, having recorded the facts, considered whethzr
the period of possession by the defendant’s mother could be
added to that of the defendant so that the latter would be en-
titled to acquire the disputed portion on the stiength of long
undisputed adverse possession.

The Court held that, inasmuch as the disputed land posscssed
by Eleni, the mother, could not be transferred verbally, th:
defendant was oaly ¢ntitied to the land actually travsferred to
ber under reg. No.6555 which registration did not include th:
disputed portion and accordingly the plaintiff was catiticd to the
injunction claimed for. But, having failed to prove damager,
the plaintifi’s claim as to damages was rejectzd.  PlaintifT was
awarded his costs.

There wa; ample evidence as to the facts found by the Court
* and could not further be challenged. It was the points of law
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involved which were matcrial in this appzal and which have been
argued at length before us.

In my view two are the points of law which fall for-decision:

(1) Whether the appellant’s mothzr’s petiod of posscssion ot
part thereof over the disput:d portion of land might b
addced to the period actually possessed by the appellant

* so that, prior to the Ist Septzmber, 1946, the date of the
coming into force of the Immovable Property (Tenurc
Registration and Valuation) Law, Cap. 224, she woulc
complete the required 10 years’ period to c¢nable her
obtain prescriptive right over the disputed land.

(2) Whether the plaintiff-iespondent was cntitled to the
injunction restraining the defendant from interfeiing witl
the disputed land notwithstanding that th: former wa
never in possession of the said land and the inclusion o
the disputed portion of land in his title deed might a
well be due to a wmistake,

As to the fitst point, possessory rights, prior to the enactmen
of the Immovable Property (Tenure, Registration and Valuation
Law, Cap. 224, were governed by Axticle 20 (in th: case of land
of Arazi Miric category) of the Ottoman Land Codz and by th
Immovable Propesty Limitation Law, 1886 (Law 4 of 1886)

Article 20:

‘In the absence of a valid excuse according to the Sacre
Law, duly proved, such as minority, unsoundness of mind
duress, or absence on a journey (muddet-i-sefer) action
concerning land of the kind that is possessed by title-dee
the occupation of which has continued without dispute fo
a period of ten years shall not be maintainable. The perio
of ten years begins to run from the time when the excusc.
above-mentioned have ceaszd to exist. Provided that if the
dcfendant admits and confcsses that he has arbitrarly
(fouzouli) taken possession of and cultivated the land nc
account is taken of the lapse of time and possession and the
land is given back to its proper possessor’.

Section 2 of Law 4 of 1886 reads:
‘The period of prescription shall be computed to commenc
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from the time when the right to brmg an action for the re-
covery of property adversely possessed first arose:’

Section 3 of Law 4 of 1886 reads:

‘An action for the recovery of immovable property of which
some person in whose name the same has not been registered
has had undisputed adverse possession for the period of
prescription shall not be maintainable unless the person
instituting the action has, during some part of the time, of
such advarse possession, prior to the expiration of the period
of prescription. betn lawfully entitled to be and has been
actually registercd as the owner thercof; but such action
shall b: mamtainable where the peison instituting it has
during some part of the time aforesaid been lawfully en-
titlked to be and has becn actually so registered’.

Th: main object of the Immovable Property Limitation Law,
1886 (No.4 of 1886} was, im my view, to amend the sccond part
of Article 20 of the Ottoman Land Code so that a person who
adversely possesses a particular piece of land would not be de-
barred of the right of acquiring ownership of the land even if he
acknowledges that he mbitrarily posscssed such land.

Hahis Eshref, commenting on Article 20 of the Land Code, at
p.200, states:

“The period of possession or abandonment by persons fiom
whom and to whom land devolves and the peried of posses-
sion by the transferor and trimsferee is added up.

As the person from whom and the person to whom the
propeity devolves ond olso the transferor and the transferee
of a property are deemed to be one person the period of
possession by both persons should be added’.

| have no doubt that this is a correct intepretation of Article 20
but the point in the present case is to find whether the appcllant-
defendant and her mother could be regarded as transferee and
transferor within the scope of this interpretation.

The words ‘transfce’ and ‘transferez’ ‘farigh’ and “‘me-
froughunich’ are legal terms and, according to Professor Djema-
ledin, the corresponding words in French are ‘cedant’ and
‘cessionaire’.
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I am inclined to the view that the words ‘‘transferor” and
“transferee”, unless the context otherwise requires, could not be
taken to include informal void transfers. The same words,
transferor and transferee, occur in Article 36 of the Land Cod:
which reads: '

‘A possessor by title deed of State land can, with the leave of
the Official, transfer it to another, by way of gift, of for a
fixed price. Transfer of State land without the leave of the
Official is void. The validity of the right of the transferee
to have posscssion depends in any case on the leave of the
Official, so that if the transferee dies without the leave having
been given the transferor (farigh) can resum: possession of
it as before. [If the latter dics (before the leave is obtained)
leaving heiis qualified to inhcrit State land as hereafter
appears they inherit it.  [f tharc are no such heirs it becomes
subject to the right of tapou (musthiki tapou) and the
transferec (mefroughunleh) shall have recourse to the estate
of the original vendor to rccover the purchase money. In
the same way exchange of land is in any case dependent on
the ieave of the Official. Every such transfer must take
place with the acccptance of the transferee or his agent’.

The transfer of a State land (Arazi Mirie) without the leave of
the official was void. The mode of transfer, howevzr, was
altered by a Law of 1890, the Land Transfer (Amendment) Law.
By section 40 of the Immovable Property (Tunure, Registration
and Valuation) Law, 1946, Cap. 224, it was enacted that -

‘(1) No transfer of, or charge on, any immovable property
shall be valid unless registered or recorded in the Distiict
lands Office.

(2} No transfer or voluntary charge affecting any immovable
property shall be made in the Distiict Lands Office by any
person unless he is the registeied owner of such property:

Provided that the executor or administrator of an
cstate of a deceased person shall, for th: puiposes of this
subsection, be deemed to be the registercd owner of any
immovable property registered in the name of the de-
ceased’.

It is clear from the old and new law rzlating to the transfer of
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immovable property that registration in one way or the other was
necessary for the validity of the transfer,

In this cas: the mother, the predecessor-in-title of the appcllant
was not, as far as the evidence goes, the registered owner in
respect of the disputed pottion of land and when she made a
gift of the land possessed by her including the disputed portion
as dowry to her daughter, the appellant, in 1938 or 1939, that
gift not having been made in accordance with the Law, could not
be considered to be a transfer in the legal sense of the woid. On
the other hand when she tiansferred the land rogistered in her
name, which registration did not include the disputed portion,
tn 1955 that transfer could not comprizc the disputed portion on
account of section 50 of the Immovable Property (Tenure Re-
gistration and Valuation) Law, which rcads as follows:

‘The area of land covered by a registration of title to im-
movable property shall be the area of the plot to which the
registration can be related on any govermment survey plan
or any other plan made to scale by the Director:

Provided that where the registration cannot be related to
any such plan such area shall be the arca of the land to
which the holder of the title may bs entitled by adverse
possession, purchase or inheritance’.

The periods of possession of an area of land by successor and
predecessor-in-title could be added up in cases of devolution by
inheritance and in transfers where the title deed is not related to
a survey plan, excluding the atea in question, and in such a case
the proviso to section 50 will operate and thz pertod of adverse
possession by transferor and transferee will then be added up.
Prior to 1946, when Article 47 of the Ottoman Land Code was
in force in a transfer where the boundaries weic indicated the
extent of the area mentioned was not material but what mattered
was the arca included within the boundaries named; Article 47
reads:

*When there is a question as to land sold as being of a defi-
nite number of donums or pics the figurc alone is taken into
consideration. But in the casc of land sold with bounda-
ries definitely fixed and indicated the number of donums or
pics contained within them are not taken into consideration
whether mentioned or not, the boundaries alone arc taken
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" into account. So for cxample if a picce of land which has

“ been sold, of which the owner has fixed and indicated the
boundaries, saying that thzy contain twenty-five donums,
such owner cannot claim from the purchaser cither the
separation and return of seven donums of land or an en-
hancement of the purchase money, nor if he dies after the
transfer can his ascendants or descendants prosecute such
a claim,

Similarly if the picce of land only contains cightcen donums
the transferee cannot claim the refund of a sum of money
equal to the value of the seven donums’.

- Befoie the General Survey and the system of registration with
reference to a survey plan was introduced in this country, trans-
fers by kotchans or tapou seneds were in vogue. These kotchans
and seneds as a rule did not relate to any survey plan and there-
fore where a dispute between two neighbouring land-owners in
respect of a portion of land falling between their propertics arose
the only way of deciding the dispute was to find out which of the
neighbouring land-owners had undisputed possession over the
disputed portion and in such cascs possussion by transferor and

. by transfeiee of the disputed portion could be computed togethur,
"“The first proviso to scction 10 of the Immovable Property (Tonu-
e, Registration and Valuation) Law has been interprcted by this
Court in a number of cases and needs no further consideration.
The period of prescription, if not completed by {st Septsmber,
1946, cannot be completed thercafter against a rcgistered owner
and in this case the possession started by the appellant in 1938
“or 1939 being incomplcte by 1st September, 1946 it cannot be
completed after that date against a registered owner the father
* of the respondent and later the respondent in this case, by con-
- tinuing ' to possess the land in dispute.

1 am of the opinion, thercfore, that whatever possessory 11ghts
+ were vested in the mother of the appellant in respect of disputed
land those rights'did not pass to‘the daughter either by virtue of

35 ! the agreement of dowry in 1938 or 1939 or on'the strength of the

t transfer inn 1955 which transfer did not include the disputed land.

" As to the 2nd point, | think the case of HjiGeorghi HjiKyriacou

~and another v. Kypriano Manuel (1910), 10 C.L.R. p.15, is to the

point. Therc the defendant by a cross-action claimed a right
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to registtation on the ground of prescription but failed to prove
his claim. On the other hand, it had bcen proved that the
plaintiff’s title deed was obtaincd by a false certificate and on
this fact the District Court dismissed the plaintiff’s claim. The
Supreme Court, howcver, allowed the appeal with costs.

Tyser, C..l., at page 16 states:

*The Courts are not Courts of Appeal from the Land Re-
gistry Office. All that the Court does is this, that where
by subsistence of any registration injury is done to some onc
who is entitled to the land, and where the person aggrieved
comes into Court to assert his rights as against the person
registercd, the Court hears his claim and makes a declaration
of his rights, and the Land Registiy Office acts upon the
Couwrt’s declaration.

The Court has no right to take the qochan into its own
hands, and without the qochan’s being challenged by any
person cntitled to the proporty, to decline to enforce it™,

Further down, Bertram., J. says:

“I agrec. No claim to have this qochan sct aside on the
ground that it was given on a false certificate was made in
the cross-action, and cven if it had been made it could not
have succeeded, as the defendant was neither herself re-
gistered nor entitled to be registered cither on the ground of
prescription or otheiwisc.

It is clear from the case of Jwwna v. Halil Imiam (1899) 3
C.L.R. 16, that a person who has neither a4 qochan nor a
right to a qochan cannot challenge a tresspasser. Much
fess cun he challenge a person armed with a qochan.  And
if the def:ndant is not entitled to challenge the plaintiff’s
gochan by cross-action, still less can he do so by way of
defence’.

Perhaps a brief refercnce might also be made to the case of
Tsikinou HadjiSavva against Kyriakou Georghiou Maroulou
(1907) 7 C.L.R., p.89 where it was held that in a dispute as to the
boundarics between two adjoining proprietors, both claiming
under kotchans, each of which is consistent with the claim of the
person holding under it, and where one of the parties is in pos-
session of the iand in dispute, the onus lies upon the party seek-
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ing to disturb that possession to establish his claim to the satis-
factioni of the Court. Obviously, this case is distinguishable
from the present one because the title deeds of both parties are
not equally consistent with claim and counter-claim. Had the
transfer in the names of the litigants been made without reference
to plots in a survey plan no doubt this case would have a strong
bearing in the prasent appeal.

On the former authority quoted | am of the opinion that even
if the registration in the name of the respondent in this case
imcluded the disputed portion by mistake he was entitled to have
judgment in his favour.

[ would, therefore, dismiss the appcal with costa™.

1t 1s clear from the above case that formal transfer of immova-
ble property in cases where the certificate of registration is based
on the survey plan means the transfer through the D.L.O. of the
plot to which the registration relates and nothing more, nothing
less. Land which is possessed by the transferor over and above
the plot to which his certificate of registration relates does not
pass to the transferee of that registration. [t is immaterial
whether such transfer was made before the st September, 1946,
the date of coming into force of the Immovable Property (Tenu-
re, Registration and Valuation) Law, Cap. 224, or after such
date. The position is different when the registration of the
transferor is not based on the survey plan. The casc of Hji
Savva v. Maroullou (supra) is clear on this point.

Applying the above principles to the facts and circumstances
of the case in hand, and assuming that possession of the disputed
portion of land by the predccsssors in title of the wife of the
respondent, could be added up, so that she could complete the
ten years required period under the old Law, as found by the
trial Judge, since the transfcr of the property in the name of the
respondant took place after the coming into force of the new
Law, her posscssion could not be added up to that of the re-
spondent, as the certificate of registration was based on the
survey plan and did not include the disputed portion.

To make matters more understandable, let us suppose that the
wife of the respondcnt was the purchaser of the property instead
of Evlambia Omirou Demetiiades and was keeping it in her pos-
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session till the time she transferred it in the name of the respon-
dent in 1954. Certainly she would have completed the required
ten years period to cnable her to obtain prescriptive right over
the disputed portion prior to the 1st Septembar, 1946, the date
of the coming into force of Cap. 224.

And 1 posc the question.  Could the position of her husband
be different from the position of the appellant in the case of
Papageerghion v. Komedromou (supra}? Certainly not. It
would be exactly the same.

However, as | have alrzady :aid carlizr in this judgment, the
trial Judge was wrong in dzciding that posscssion of the disput:d
piece of land could bs added up to that of the wifz of the re-
spondcnt, as he has misinteiprated and applied the words““formal
transfar” referred to in the case of Papageorghiou v. Kemodroniou

-~ (sup1a).

In the present case we have it that the registrations of both the
appellant and the respondent on 25.11.24, shortly after the Gene-
ral Survey for the Paphos District had becn completed, were
issued in the name of loulios D. Loizides under Nos.4945 and
4952, respectively, both based on the survey plan.  Registration
No0.4945, eventually the property of the appellant, was identified
as baing plot 112 comprising 22 donums and three evicks in
extent and covering the disputed piece of land, was transferred
as a result of a forced sale at a public auction to Mclissa Bank,
as the highest bidder, under Registration 6104 dated 25th No-
vember, 1933. About two months later. this property was
transfericd in the name of the appellant under Registration No.
6153 dated 20th January, 1934,

Registration No. 4952, cventually the property of the re-
spondent, was identificd 25 plot 392 comprising five donums and
2 evieks in extent, was also transferred, as a result of a forced
sale and public auction in the name of Evlambia Omirou Deme-
triades, as the highest bidder, under Registration No.6373 dated

21st May, 1936.

Obviously, what was put up for sale at the public auction of
t both properties and formally transferred through the D.L.O., was
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plot 112 which included the disputed portion in the name of
Melissa Bank and plot 392 in the name of Evlambia Omirou De-
metriades, So, when the wife of the respondent bought plot 392
from Andrianou Touliou Loizides, who had purchased it from
Evlambia Omirou Demetriades what was formally transfarred
in her name through the D.L.O., was a piece of land of an extent
of 5 donums and 2 evleks which did not include the disputed
portion. Consequently, the disputed portion was never formal-
ly transferred in the name of the successive owners of plot 392
and so no one of them had completed the ten years prescriptive
pertod required under the Law in force prior to 1st September,
1946.

For the reasons stated above, | would allow the appeal, set
aside the judgment of the trial Court and give judgment and
Order as per paragraphs (a) and (b) of the claim of the plaintitt
in the action, with costs, both here and in the Court below.

L. Loizou, J.: [ have had the advantage of reading and
discussing the judgment of my brother Malachtos, J. with him
and T am in full agreement that for the rcasons stated therein
the appeal should be allowed.

It is common ground that the disputed portion of land is
included in appellant’s registration 6153 of the 20th January,
1934; it is also a fact that shortly after the complection of the
general survey in Paphos on th: 27th May, 1924, appellant’s
plot was identified as plot 112 and that of the respondent as plot
392, in both instances after a local inquiry and that the respective
title deeds of the two properties are related to a survey plan made
to scale,

Having regard to the history of the registrations of the two
plots, which is given in detail in the judgment, even on the assum- -
ption that any possessory rights may have been vested in the
predecessor-in-title of the respondent, his wife Maria Evangeli
Charalambous, in rzspect of the disputed portion of land -
which does not seem to be the case - such rights could not pass
to her husband, the respondent, when plot 392, which admittedly
did not include the disputed land, was registered in his name on
the 25th May, 1954 i.c. after Cap. 224 came into force on the
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Ist September, 1946, undcr registration 7724 and this on account
of 5.50 therecof.

In the result the judgment of the trial Court is sct aside and the
appeal is allowed by majority with costs here and in the Court
below.

Appeal alfowed by majority. Order for
costs as above.
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